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I-LOGIC TECHNOLOGIES BIDCO LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT
for the financial year ended 31 December 2022

The director presents herewith the Strategic Report, Directer's Report and audited consolidated
financial statements {"financial statements” or “consolidated financial statements™) for the financial
year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES, REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

I-Logic Technglogies Bidco Limited {the "Company”) and its subsidiaries {the “Group”) develop and
market content, data, analytics and software solutions to corporate and financial institutions. The
Group generates revenue from data, content and software licences and from professional services.
The Group intends to continue to grow organically and through acquisitions.

On 13 April 2022, the Group drew down incremental borrowings of $200.0 million and €200.0 mitlion.
The proceeds of the borrowing were used to repay a $274.9 million bridge loan drawn down in
connection with the Backstop acquisition in 2021 with the remaining funds used for general corporate
purposes.

Financial Performance Indicators

The Group’s key measures of financial performance are Revenue, EBITDA (earnings before interest,
taxation, depreciation, amortisation and loss on disposal of property, piant and equipment), Loss after
Taxation, Net Cash Flow and Net Debt.

Revenue
The Group’s totat revenue was $508 .4 million in 2022 and $496.4 million in 2021. The increase in
total revenue for 2022 as compared to 2021 is $12.0 million or 2.4%.

EBITDA

Earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation, amortisation and loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment was $300.8 million in 2022 and $333.1 million in 2021. The decrease in EBITDA for
2022 as compared to 2021 is $32.3 million or 9.7%.

Loss after Taxation

Loss after taxation, including a $179.4 million charge relating to the amortisation of intangible assets
(2021: $161.3 million), was $2.3 million in 2022 compared to a loss after taxation of $73.7 million in
2021. The decrease in loss after taxation for 2022 as compared to 2021 is $71.4 million or 96.9%.

Net Cash Flow and Net Debt

The Group's cash balance increased by $2.2 mitlion in 2022 compared to an increase of $33.1 million
in 2021. Net debt at the end of 2022 was $2,176.0 million compared to $1,819.6 million at the end of
2021. The increase in the net debt is primarily due to additional borrowings drawn during the year.
See the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for further details on the movements in cash.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The principal risks and uncertainties which the Group faces are:
¢ The Group derives a significant partion of its revenues from customers in the financial
services sector. The Group's business, financial condition and operating results could be
adversely affected by significant changes in that sector;
» Consolidation of customers as well as cost-cutting across our customer base could impact
the Group's available markets and revenue growth;
» The Group generates a significant percentage of its revenues from recurring, subscription-
based arrangements, and the Group's ability to maintain existing revenues and to generate
higher revenues is dependent in part on maintaining a high customer retention rate;



I-LOGIC TECHNOLOGIES BIDCO LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT
for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (Continued)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continucd)

« Potential defects in the Group’s products or failure to provide services for the Group’s
customers could cause the Group's revenue to decrease, cause the Group to lose customers
and damage the Group's reputation;

+« The Group has historically grown organically and through the acquisition of, and investment
in, cther companies, product lines and technologies. There can be no guarantees that future
acquisitions can be successfully integrated or that projected growth in revenues or synergies
in operating costs can be achieved. Additionally, even during a successful integration, the
investment of management's time and resources in the new enterprise may be detrimental
to the consolidation and growth of the Group’s existing business;

¢ The Group has a limited ability to protect its intellectual property rights, and others could
obtain and use the Group’s technelogy without authorisation;

» The Group may be exposed to significant liability if it infringes the intellectual property or
proprietary rights of others; and

« The Group has funded its activities through the issuance of shares, operating cash flows and
borrowings. The Group expects that the proceeds of borrowings, current working capital and
sales revenues will fund its existing operations and payment obligations. However, if the
Group’s capital requirements are greater than expected, or if revenues are not sufficient to
fund operations, the Group may need to find additional financing which may not be available
on attractive terms or at all. The Group’s use of financial instruments is discussed in note 18.

The Group has insurances, business policies and organisational structures to limit these risks and
uncertainties. The director and management regularly review, reassess and proactively limit the
associated risks.

SECTION 172 STATEMENT

The director is aware of their duty under section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 to act in the way
which he considers, in good faith, would be most likely to promote the success of the Company for
the benefit of its members and key stakeholders. The director when making key decisions for the
Company have had considered the impact of his decisions to the Company’s key stakeholders and
to wider society by continuing to facilitate the critical processes within our customer's businesses,
and by focusing on innovation in the capital markets in order to contribute to continuous process
improvement for our customers.

Cne of Company's core values is to long term thinking and building long-term sustainable
relationships with our customers. The Company's products help our customers to improve decision-
making, increase efficiency, simplify complex processes and empower their people. This is achieved
by partnering with our customers to enable them to find insights that lead to business opportunities
as well as strengthen compliance and risk management with in depth regulatory insights.

These long-term sustainable relationships allow us to invest in product development that enhances
our products and provides more useful information to our customers; as well as managing our
commitments to our suppliers and lenders.



I-LOGIC TECHNOLOGIES BIDCO LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT
for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (Continued)

SECTION 172 STATEMENT (Continued)

The Company recognises our employees are a critical success factor for the Company, hence we
seek to assist our employees to succeed through a positive culture and continuous
improvement. There are a number of measures in place to keep employees up to date on recent
developments of Company and allow employee engagement with senior management, through face
to face meetings and electronic media.

Approved by the Director
Lo d Ve

Kunal GuHapalli
Director

22 Aprit 2023



I-LOGIC TECHNOLOGIES BIDCO LIMITED

DIRECTOR’S REPORT
for the financial year ended 31 December 2022

The director presents herewith his repert and audited consolidated financial statements for the
financial year ended 31 December 2022.

DIRECTOR AND HIS INTERESTS
The interests of the director and company secretary who served at any time during the financial year
in shares of the Company or other Group companies are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS
In 2022, a dividend of $251.8 millicn was declared and paid (2021: $24.9 million).

EVENTS SINCE THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATE
In January, March and April 2023 the Company declared and paid dividends of $19.5 million, $76.9
million and $6.9 million respectively.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Research and development are concentrated on the development of financial information products
and software solutions for capital management. The capitatised development costs are shown in note
10. All other development costs are expensed as incurred.

GOING CONCERN

The consolidated and Company financial statements have been prepared cn the going concern basis
of accounting. The time period that the director has considered in evaluating the appropriateness of
the going concern basis of accounting is a period of at least 12 months from the date of approval of
these financial statements (the 'period of assessment').

The director has considered the Group's business activities and how it generates value, together with
the main trends and facters likely to affect future development, business performance and position of
the Group.

The director has considered the budget of the Group, both a base case and a severe but plausible
downside case, and alsoc examined the financial position of the Group, including cash flows, liquidity
position and borrowing facilities (see note 18 for the details on the loans). As a result of this review,
the director has satisfied himself and considers it appropriate that the Group and the Company is a
going concern, having adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future and has not identified any material uncertainties that would cast significant doubt on the
Group’s and the Company's ability to continue as a going concern over the period of assessment,

DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT
The director is responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Director's Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the director to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that
law, the director has elected to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with UK
Adopted International Accounting Standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006 (UK Adopted |ASs’) and applicable law, and the Company financial statements in
accordance with with UK Accounting Standards and appiicable law (UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice), including Financial Report Standard 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’
(FRS 101).



I-LOGIC TECHNOLOGIES BIDCO LIMITED

DIRECTOR’S REPORT
for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (Continued)

DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT (continued)

Under Company law, the director must not approve the financial statements unless he is satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company as at the year end date
and of their profit or loss for that financial year.

In preparing those financial etatomonte, the director is required to:

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

* for the Group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared in accordance
with international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006 and applicable law;,

s for the Company financial statements, state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards,
including FRS 101, have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements;

« assess the Group and Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern; and

s use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Group or
the Company or to cease operations or have no realistic aiternative but to do so.

The director is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and enable him to ensure that its financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. He is responsible for such internal control as he determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and have a general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to
them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

EMPLOYEE MATTERS

The well-being of the Group’'s employees is safeguarded through the strict adherence to health and
safety standards. The Safety, Health and Welfare at Work Act, 2005 imposes certain requirements
on director, managers and employees. The Group has taken the necessary action to ensure
compliance with the Act, including the adoption of a safety statement.

The Group is committed to empioyment policies, which follow best practice, based on equal
opportunities for all employees, irrespective of sex, race, colour, disability or marital status. The Group
gives full and fair consideration to applications fer employment for disabled persons, having regard to
their particular aptitudes and abilities. Appropriate arrangements are made for the continued
empioyment and training, career development and promotion of disabled persons employed by the
Group. If members of staff become disabled the Group continues employment, either in the same or
an alternative position, with appropriate retraining being given if necessary.

The Group systematically provides employees with information on matters of concern to them,
consulting them or their representatives regularly, so that their views can be taken into account when
making decisions that are likely to affect their interests. Employee involvement in the Group is
encouraged, as achieving a commonawareness on the part of all employees of the financial and
economic factors affecting the Group plays a major role in maintaining its competitive advantage.



I-LOGIC TECHNOLOGIES BIDCO LIMITED

DIRECTOR’S REPORT
for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (Continued)

GREENHQUSE GAS EMISSIONS, ENERGY CONSUMPTION AND ENERGY EFFICIENCY

The Group will seek to minimise adverse impacts on the environment from its activities, whilst
continuing to address health, safety and economic issues. The Group has complied with all applicable
legislation and regulations.

2022 2021
kwh kwh
UK energy consumed:
Electricity use 329,703 331,478
Gas combustion 294 151 238,768
2022 2021
Tonnes CO2 Tonnes CO2
UK emissicns from:
Scope 1 (Direct) 54 44
Scope 2 {(Energy Indirect) 70 70
Scope 3 (Other Indirect) - -
Company’s chosen intensity measurement:
Total CO2 emissions per $m Revenue 062 0.51

Consumption data was determined by using landlord reports. Emissions were determined by applying
the UK government conversion factors to the energy consumption values and aggregating the total.

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO THE AUDITOR

So far as each person who was a director at the date of approving this report is aware, there is no
relevant audit informaticn, being infermation needed by the auditor in connection with preparing their
report, of which the auditor is unaware. Having made enquiries of the Company’s auditor, the sole
director has taken all the steps that he is obliged to take as a director in order to make himself aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

AUDITOR
Ernst & Young, Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audit Firm, will continue in office in accordance
with Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006.

Approved by the Director,

Z’f vs«{ IL/ _; v,J,LT:ML{A

4 -

Kunal Gullapalli
Director

22 April 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF I-LOGIC TECHNOLOGIES BIDCO
LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of |-Logic Technologies Bidco Limited (‘the parent company’)
and its subsidiaries (the 'group’) for the year ended 31 December 2022 which comprise the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Financial Position,
Company Slalemenl of Financial Position, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, Company
Statement of Changes in Equity, Consclidated Cash Flow Statement and the related notes 1 to 29,
including a summary of significant accounting poelicies. The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in their preparaticn is applicable law and UK adopted International Accounting Standards
and as regards the parent company financial statements, as applied in accordance with section 408 of
the Companies Act 2006.

in our opinion:

¢ the financial statements give a true and fair view of the group's and of the parent company's
affairs as at 31 December 2022 and of the group’s loss for the year then ended;

e the group financiai statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted
International Accounting Standards;

+ the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK
adopted International Accounting Standards as applied in accordance with section 408 of the
Companies Act 2006; and

+ the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) {ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the FRC'’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these reguirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. Qur evaluation of the
directors’ assessment of the group and parent company’s ability to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting included the following:

e We confirmed, through management enquiry, our understanding of management’s going concern
assessment process. We also engaged with management early to ensure all key risks and factors
were considered in their assessment.

¢ We obtained management’s going concern assessment which assesses current economic factors,
current profitability, the net current asset and net asset position of the group and company.
Management's assessment includes forecasts and sensitivity analysis, covering a period up to 31
December 2024.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF I-LOGIC TECHNOLOGIES BIDCO
LIMIIED ({Continued)

Conclusions relating to going concern (continued)

s We considered the appropriateness of the assumpticns used to calculate the cash forecast and
determined through inspection and testing of the methodology and calculations that the methods
utilised were appropriate to be able to make an assesoment for the entity.

« We performed reverse stress testing on the forecasts to understand how severe the downside
scenarios would have to be to result in the elimination of liquidity headroom or a covenant breach.

« We reviewed managements’ covenant calculations and performed a detailed review of all the
borrowing facilities to assess their continued availability to the group and company through the going
concern period and to ensure completeness of covenants.

= We read the group and company’'s going concern disclosures included in the financial statements
in order to assess whether the disclosures were appropriate and in conformity with the reporting
standards.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group and
parent company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period to 31 December 2024.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are
described in the relevant sections of this report. However, because not all future events or conditions
can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the group's ability to continue as a going
concern.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information
contained within the annual report.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in deoing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
course of the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives
rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themseives. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required
to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions an other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+ the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

e the strategic report and directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.
10
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF I-LOGIC TECHNOLOGIES BIDCO
LIMITED (Continued)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

in the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its
environment cbtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the
strategic report or directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relaticn to which the Companies Act

2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for
our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

» the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns; or

e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on pages 6 and 7, the
directors are responsibie for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the
parent company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicakle, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operaticns, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the econcmic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities,
including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures Iin line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect irregularities, including fraud. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting cne
resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or
intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion. The extent to which our procedures are capable
of detecting irregularities, inciuding fraud is detailed below. However, the primary responsibility for the
prevention and detection of fraud rests with both those charged with governance of the entity and
management.

11
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF I-LOGIC TECHNOLOGIES BIDCO
LIMITED (Continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements {continued)

Cxplanativn as io what exrent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities,
including fraud (continued)}

*  We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the
company and determined that the most significant are UK adopted International Accounting
Standards, FRS 101, Companies Act 2006 and the relevant tax compliance regulations in the UK.
In addition, we concluded that there are certain significant laws and regulations that may have an
effect on the determination of the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements and those
laws and regulations relating to health and safety, employee matters, environmental and bribery
and corruption practices.

*  We understood how I-Logic Technologies Bidco Limited is complying with those frameworks by
making enquiries of management. We corrcborated our enquires through reading the board
minutes, and we noted that there was no contradictory evidence.

* We assessed the susceptibility of the Company’s financial statements to material misstatement,
including how fraud might occur by inguiry of management, those charged with governance and
others within the group and entity, as to whether they have knowledge of any actual or suspected
fraud. Where this risk was considered higher, we performed audit procedures to address the fraud
risk. These procedures included testing manual journais and were designed to provide
reasonable assurance that the financial statements were free from fraud or error.

« Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify noncompliance with
such laws and requlations. Our procedures involved reading board minutes to identify any non-
compliance with laws and regulations and enquiries of management.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council's website at hitps://www frc.org. uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of our auditor’'s report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anycne other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for cur audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

oo Lo

Ronan Clinton (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young, Statutory Auditor

Waterford

24 April 2023
12



I-LOGIC TECHNOLOGIES BIDCO LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the financial year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note $060 $'000
Revenue 2 508,408 496,418
Operating expenses (207.647) (163,277)
Amortisation of nlangible assets 10 (179,358) (161,323)
Depreciation of property, plant, and equipment 13 (8,996) {(11,619)
Operating profit 3 112,407 160,199
(Loss) on disposal of property, plant and eguipment (22) (38)
Finance income 7 11,619 2977
Financc expenses 8 (119,195) {186,616)
Profit / (Loss) before taxation 4,809 (23,478)
Taxation 9 (7,141) {50,263)
Loss for the financial year (2,332) {(73,741)
Other comprehensive loss to be reclassified to profit or
{oss in subsequent periods:
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations (6.755) (3.421)
Total comprehensive ioss (9,087) (77,162)

-13 -



I-LOGIC TECHNOQLOGIES BIDCO LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

at 31 December 2022

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Intangible assets

Investment in an associate
Property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets

Trade and other receivables

CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

Called up share capital

Share premium

Other reserves

Foreign currency translation reserve
Retained earnings

TOTAL EQUITY

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Other liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Provisions

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
interest bearing loans and borrowings

TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Note

10
12
13

14

14

15
15
15

18
16

17

19
18

2022 2021
$000 $'000
3,348 277 3,499,840
3,549 3,058
11,958 16,293
610 549

782 -
3,365,176 3,520,640
312,454 252,276
53,407 51,175
365,861 303,451
3,731,037 3,824,091
6,745 6,745
1,089,235 1,089,235
(553,195) (553,195)
(12,235) (5,480)
6,377 260,507
536,927 797,812
2,216,129 1,861,903
102,108 108,012
289,412 306,615
777 808
2,608,426 2,277,338
572,390 740,045
13,294 8,896
3,194,110 3,026,279
3,731,037 3,824,001

The financial statements were approved by the director and authorised for issue on 22 April 2023.

They were signed by:

Kunal Gullapallt
Director

-/’; e {' lLf/ : O - ; ;-’\-,...‘I‘r rﬁ-J-’{_.‘



I-LOGIC TECHNOLOGIES BIDCO LIMITED

COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
at 31 December 2022

Note 2022 2021
$000 30660
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Financial assets 11 2,980,608 2086,384
2,980,608 2,086,384
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other receivables 14 110,521 113,150
Cash and cash equivalents 9 39
110,530 113,189
TOTAL ASSETS 3.081,138 2,199,573
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Called up share capital 15 6,745 6,745
Share premium 15 1,089,235 1,089,235
Retained earnings 271,438 457,834
TOTAL EQUITY 1,367,418 1,553,814
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other liabilities 16 - 632,024
632,024
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 19 1,723,720 13,735
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,723,720 645,759
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 3,091,138 2,199,673

The net profit of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022 was $65.4 million (2021: loss
of $22.9 million). The financial statements were approved by the director and authorised for issue
on 22 April 2023.

They were signed by:

Lt Ve,

Kunal Guilapalli
Director

-15-
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I-LOGIC TECHNOLOGIES BIDCO LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the financial year ended 31 December 2022

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit / {(Loss) before taxation

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets

Finance expenses
Finance income

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Foreign exchange gains

Movements in working capital:
{Increase} in trade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables

Income tax paid
Net cash generated by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Payments for intangible assets

Development expenditure

Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired
Payment for employee benefits on acquisition of
subsisidiaries

Payment of deferred consideration

Acquisiton of an associate

Loans to fellow subsidiary undertakings

Loan to other related parties

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Charges an early repayment of berrowings
Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Interest paid

Payment of debt issue costs

Payment of lease liabilities

{(Repayments of) / loans from fellow subsidiary
undertakings

Dividend paid

Net cash flows (used in) / generated by from financing

activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Net foreign exchange difference
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December
-18 -

Note

2]

13
10
10
26

12

18(iv)
18(iv)
18(iv)
18(iv)
18(iv)

18(iv)
15

2022 2021
$'000 $000
4,809 (23,478)

188,354 172,942
119,195 186,616
(11,619) (2,977)
22 38
(57,296) (86,442)
(54,353) (3,972)
52,318 35,981
(15,449) (9,246)
225,981 269,462
(637) (584)
(9,102) (11,882)
(19,159) (19,669)
- (175,684)

- (54,588)
(6,282) (10,000)
- (2,772)

- (71,220)
(1,500) -
(36,680) (346,399)
- (49,679)
426,360 2,268,112
(16,310) (2,235,317)
(82,480) (87,739)
(4,370) (21,070)
(7.657) (9,282)
(252,950) 269,900
(251,798) (24,915)
(189,205) 110,010
96 33,073
2,136 54
51,175 18,048
53,407 51,175




I-LOGIC TECHNOLOGIES BIDCC LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2022

(a)

(b

ACCOUNIING POLICIES

General information
I-Logic Technologies Bidco Limited is a private company limited by shares which was
incorporated in England and Wales. The registered office address is 10 Queen Street Place,
Znd Fioor, London, EC4R 1BE, United Kingdom. The principal activities of the Company and
its subsidiaries are described in the Strategic Report. The ultimate parent undertaking is
disclosed in note 25.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with
in accordance with UK Adopted international Accounting Standards in conformity with the
reguirements of the Companies Act 2006 (‘UK Adopted IASs’). The financial statements of
the Company have been prepared in accerdance with Financial Reporting Standard 101
“‘Reduced Disclosure Framework” (FRS 101).

The following exemptions frcm the requirements of UK Adopted IASs have been applied in
the preparation of the financial statements of the Company, in accordance with FRS 101:

» |FRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

= Paragraphs 91 to 99 of IFRS 13 Fair value measurement (disclosure of valuation
techniques and inputs used for fair value measurement of assets and liabilities)

e The following paragraphs of |1AS 1 Presentation of financial staternents:
(i) 10(d) (statement of cash flows),
(i) 16 (statement of compliance with all IFRS),
(iiiy 3BA (requirement for minimum of two primary statements, including cash flow

statements),

(iv) 111 (cash flow statement information), and
(v} 134-136 (capital management disclosures).

* |AS 7 Statement of cash flows

+ Paragraph 30 and 31 of I1AS 8 Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and
errors (requirement for the disciosure of information when an entity has not applied a
new IFRS that has been issued but is not yet effective)

e Paragraph 17 of IAS 24 Related parly disclosures (key management compensation)

« The requirements in IAS 24 Related party disclosures to disclose related party
transactions entered into between two or more members of a group

« Paragraphs 130(A(ii), 130(fiii), 134(d) to 134(f) and 135(c) to 135(e) of IAS 36
Impairment of assets

The Company has availed of the exemption in Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 from
presenting the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The accounting policies described below apply equally to the consolidated financial
statements and the Company financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the financial statements of the
Company have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain financial assets
and financial liabilities which are carried at fair value. The consoclidated and Company
financial statements are presented in USD, which is also the Company’s functional currency.
Ali values are rounded to the nearest thousand ($'000), except where otherwise indicated.
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I-LOGIC TECHNOLOGIES BIDCO LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2022 (Continued)

1.

(b)

(c)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

The consolidated and Company financial statements have been prepared on the going
concern basis of accounting. The time pericd that the director has considered in evaluating
the appropriateness of the going concern basis of accounting is a period of at least 12 months
from the date of approval of these financial statements (the 'period of assessment’).

The director has considered the Group's business activities and how it generates value,
together with the main trends and factors likely to affect the future development, business
performance and position of the Group.

The director has considered the budget of the Group, both a base case and a severe but
plausible downside case, and also examined the financial positicn of the Group, including
cash flows, liquidity position and borrowing facilities (see note 18 for the details on the lcans).
As a result of this review, the director has satisfied himself and consider it appropriate that
the Group and the Company is a going concern, having adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future and has not identified any material
uncertainties that would cast significant doubt on the Group’s and the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern over the period of assessment.

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements consoclidate the financial statements of the Company and all
of its subsidiary undertakings prepared to 31 December 2022, Consolidation of a subsidiary
begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary, except for commaon control transactions as detailed below. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee. Upon the acquisition of a business, fair values are attributed to the identifiable net
assets acquired.

Where the financial statements of subsidiary undertakings are prepared to a year end that
differs from that of the Company, the amounts included in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of these subsidiary undertakings are represented by their latest
financial statements prepared to their respective year ends, together with management
accounts for the intervening periods to 31 December 2022, Financial statements of
subsidiaries are prepared using consistent accounting poelicies. All intra-group balances,
transactions, unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and
dividends are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group accounts for group reconstructions and common control transactions under the
principles of predecessor accounting, and the comparative periods are represented as if the
entities had been part of the same group from the earliest date they were under common
control. On consolidation, any difference (merger adjustment) between the carrying value of
the investment in the subsidiary and the aggregate of the nominal value of the subsidiary’s
shares, together with any share premium account and capital redemption reserve of the
subsidiary is taken to other reserves.
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I-LOGIC TECHNOLOGIES BIDCO LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2022 (Continued)

1.

{c)

ACCCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

Basis of consolidation {continued)

Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions. Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and atiributed to the equity holders of the Company.

Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported for assets and liabilities as at
the Statement of Financial Position date and the amounts reported for revenues and
expenses during the year. However, the nature of estimation means that actual outcomes
could differ from those estimates.

The following judgements and estimates have had the most significant effect on amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

{iy Development costs: The Group capitalises development costs for develcpment projects
in accordance with the accounting policy. Initial capitalisation of costs is based on
management’'s judgement that technological and econcmic feasibility is confirmed. In
determining the amounts to be capitalised, management makes assumptions regarding
the expected future cash generation of the project, and the expected pericd of benefits.

(i) Tax provisions: The determination of the Group’s provision for income tax requires
certain judgements and estimates in retation to matters where the ultimate tax cutcome
may not be certain. The recognition or non-recognition of deferred tax assets as
appropriate also requires judgement as it involves an assessment of the future
recoverability of those assets. Although management believes that the estimates
included in the consolidated financial statements are reasonable, there is no certainty
that the final outcome of these matters will not be different than that which is reflected in
the Group’s income tax provisions and accruals.

(i) Provisions and accruals: In determining the amount of provisions, assumptions and
estimates are made in relation to the expected cost to settle the obligations and the
expected timing of those costs. Where the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate,
the risks specific to the liability.

(iv) Provision for doubtful debts: The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate the expected
credit loss (ECL). The provision matrix is based on days past due, initially based on the
Group’s historical observed default rates by customer segment. In determining the
provision matrix, a significant judgement exists in determining the correlation between
historically observed default rates, current and future economic conditions. The Group's
historical observed default rates as adjusted by future economic conditions may not be
representative of the future actual default rates. Please see note 14 for further details.
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{-LOGIC TECHNOLOGIES BIDCO LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2022 (Continued)

1.

(d)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(v) Business combinations: As part of a business combination, the assets and liabilities of

the acquired group are brought onto the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position at
their fair values. There are a number of significant judgements used in determining the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired. Business combinations may also result
in intangible benefits being brought into the Group, some of which qualify for recognition
as intangible assets while other such benefits do not meet the recognition requirements
of IFRS and therefore form part of goodwill. Judgement is required in the assessment
and valuation of these intangible assets, including assumptions on the timing and amount
of future cash flows generated by the assets and the selection of an appropriate discount
rate. Similarly, judgement was required for the day one fair value of non-cash
consideration issued as part of the consideration for the business combination. Please
see notes 10 and 26 for further details.

{vi) Discount rates used in measurement of iease liabilities: 'n determining the initial

measurement of the lease liability, the Group discounts lease payments using the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate (IBR), where the interest rate implicit in the lease
cannot be readily determined. The (BR is the rate that the individual lessee would have
to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar econemic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
In determining the IBR, the Group makes judgement on the selection of appropriate
benchmark rates and necessary adjustments to reflect the specific circumstances of the
lease.

(vii) Impairment of intangible assets: The Group performed its annual impairment test on its

goodwill and other intangible assets as of reporting date. The recoverable amounts of the
intangible assets were determined based on value-in-use calculations using cash flow
projections from financial budgets approved by management. In the case of goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite lives, at a minimum, such assets are subject to an annual
impairment test and more frequently whenever there is an indication that such asset may
be impaired. This requires an estimation of the value-in-use of the cash-generating units
to which the gocdwill is allocated. Estimating the value-in-use reguires the Group to make
an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash fiows.
Refer to note 10 for further details of the assumptions used by the Group.
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I-LOGIC TECHNOLOGIES BIDCO LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2022 (Continued)

1.

(e)

0

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Sale of and subscription of licences

Licence revenue is recognised over the period of the related sales agreement, where the
licence is considered a right to access Intellectual Property or the licence is considered a
right to use of the software.

Rendering of services

Revenue pursuant to time and material professional services contracts are recognised as
services are performed. Revenues from fixed-fee professional services contracts are
recognised based on the actual service provided to the end of the reporting period as a
proportion of the total services to be provided. This is determined based on the actual labour
hours spent relative to the total expected labour hours. Estimates of revenues, costs or extent
of progress toward completicn are revised if circumstances change Any resulting increases
or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period in
which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known. Any costs incurred in
relation to the provision of services which are reimbursable from the customer in accordance
with the terms of the contract are recognised as revenue when the right to be reimbursed is
established.

Revenue from research reports and events is recognised in the same accounting period in
which the report is published or event is held.

Incremental costs of obtaining contracis

The Group recognises the incremental costs of cbtaining contracts with customers that are
directly associated with the contract as an asset if those costs are expected to be recoverable
and records them in intangible assets in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.
Incremental costs of obtaining contracts are those costs that are incurred o obtain a contract
with a customer that would nct have been incurred if the contract had not been obtained.

intangible assels

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of
acquisition, if they satisfy the recognition criteria. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development
costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is reflected in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income in the year in which the expenditure is incurred. The useful lives of intangible assets
are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised
evenly over their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at the
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I-LOGIC TECHNOLOGIES BIDCO LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2022 (Continued)

1.

M

{g)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assels (continued)

end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life, or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset, are accounted for by
changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in
accounting estimates.

The useful economic lives of intangible assets with finite lives are as follow:

Customer lists 11 10 25 years
Tradenames 10 to 20 years
Databases 5to 10 years
Technology 5to 10 years
Contract costs 1to 8 years

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised but are tested for impairment
annually. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life continues to be suppertable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to
finite is made on a prospective basis. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
when the asset is derecognised.

Research and development costs

Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and
unigue software products controlled by the Group are recognised as intangible assets when
all of the following criteria are satisfied:

* it is technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for
use,

¢ management intends to complete the software product and use or sell it;

e there is an ability to use or sell the software product;

. it can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic
benefits;

+ adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the software product are available; and

s the expenditure attributable to the software product during its development can be
reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are recognised as an
expense as incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an expense are not
recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the cost model is
applied requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when development is
compiete, and the asset is available for use. It is amortised evenly over the period of expected
future benefit. The current weighted average life of capitalised development costs is 3 years
(2021: 3 years).
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I-LOGIC TECHNOLOGIES BIDCO LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2022 (Continued)

1.

(h)

()

@

(k)

ACCCUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and represents the excess of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acguiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree gver the fair value
of the identifiable net assets acquired. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controliing
interest recagnised and previously held interest measured at fair value is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acgquired in a business combination is allocated to each of the
cash generating units (CGUs), or groups of CGUs that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. if any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Group makes an estimate of the assef's recoverable amount in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. An asset's recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset's {or cash-generating unit) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use
and is determined at the individual asset level, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where
the carryingamount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost or valuation less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Cost comprises the amount paid and the costs directly
attributable to making the asset capable of operating as intended. Depreciation is provided
on all property, plant and equipment, at rates calculated to write off the cost, less estimated
residual value based on prices prevailing at the date of acquisition of each asset, evenly over
its expected useful life, as follows:

Leasehold improvements over the period of lease
Right-of-use assets over the pericd of lease
Office eguipment 3 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting pericd. Any gain or ioss arising from the derecognition of the asset is
included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period of derecognition.

investment in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are initially recognised at cost. Subsequent to initial
measurement, the investment in subsidiary is carried at cost less impairment.
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I-LOGIC TECHNOLOGIES BIDCO LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2022 (Continued)

1.

(l)

(m)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies. The Group’s investment in an associate is
accounted for using the equity method.

The consclidated statement of comprehensive income reflects the Group’'s share in the
results of operations of the associate . Where there has been a change recognised in the
investees’ other comprehensive income, the Group recognises its share of any changes and
discloses this, when applicable, in other comprehensive income. Profits and losses arising
from transactions between the Group and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the
interest in the associates. Dividends received or receivable from associates are recognised
as a reduction in the carrying vaiue of the investment in associate.

The Group's investment in associate includes goodwill on acquisition. Goodwill relating to an
associate is included in the carrying value of the investment and is not amortised. The
carrying value of the investment in associate is tested for impairment.

The financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with
those of the Group. Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between
the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of
the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

Leases as a lessee

The Group accounts for a contract or a part of a contract as a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration,

On the commencement of a lease, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability for all leases except short term leases that have a lease term of 12 month or less and
leases of low-value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at the amount of the lease liability plus any initial
direct costs incurred, any initial payments which have already been made but are not included
in the lease liability and an estimate of the restoration costs required under the terms of the
lease less any lease incentives received. Depreciation on the right-of-use asset is charged
to the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
asset's useful life and the lease term. For purposes of subsequent measurement of the right-
of-use asset, the Group follows the policy for property, plant and equipment, being cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

The Group initially measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments
over the lease term that are not paid at commencement date, discounted using the Group's
incremental borrowing rate. The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method. It is remeasured when there is a change in future
lease payments and corresponding adjustment of such remeasurement is made to the
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I-LOGIC TECHNOLOGIES BIDCO LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2022 (Continued)

1.

(m)

(n)

(o)

(p)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conlinued)

Leases (continued)
Leases as a lessee (continued)

carrying amount of right-of-use asset unless the carrying value of right-of-use asset is
reduced to zero.

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value items in
profit or loss on a straight line basis over the lease term. Low-value items comprise IT
equipment.

Leases as a lessor

When the Group is a lessor, the Group accounts for the leases as a finance lease when, the
Greup transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the underlying asset,
otherwise the lease is accounted for as an operating lease on a straight-line basis through
profit or loss.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and
the sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference
to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying
asset. If a head lease is a short-term lease to which the Group applies the exemption
described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.

Pension costs

The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes. Contributions are charged to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and recognised as employee benefit expenses as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme.

Provisions for liabilities

A provision is recognised when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result
of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation; and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the
effect is material, expected future cash flows are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

Financial assels

Initial recognition and measurement - the Group determines the classification of its financial
assets on initial recognition. The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at
its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement - for purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets held
by the Group are classified in the following categories:

e Financial assets at amortised cost - these include financial assets at amortised cost if
both of the following conditions are met: (i) the asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows, and (ii} based on the
contractual terms, the expected cashflows are solely payments of principal and interest
on the outstanding principal. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
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1.

(p)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial assets (continued)

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) methed,
less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR;

* Financial assets at fair vaiue through profit or ioss - these include financial assets held
for trading and financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value.
Derivatives, including embedded derivatives which are accounted for as separate
derivatives, other than those designated at fair value through profit or loss are classified
as held for trading. After initial recognition, such financial assets are carried at fair value
in the Statement of Financial Position with net changes in fair value presented in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Impairment of financial assets - the Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
{ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based
on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the centract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of
the original effective interest rate.

For trade receivables and accrued revenue, the Group applies a simplified approach in
calculating EClLs. Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the trade receivable and the economic environment.

The Group considers default to occur when contractual payments are outstanding greater
than 360 days past due based on historical experience, however given the Group applies a
simplified approach in calculating ECLs for trade receivables and accrued revenue, the
definition of default has no impact on the quantification of the provision. Trade receivables
are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cashflows, which is based on an assessment of the Group’s intention and ability to
successfully recover balances through enforcement activities.

Derecognition - a financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a
group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's
consolidated Statement of Financial Position) when:

» The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

» The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash fiows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement, and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

-28 -



I-LOGIC TECHNOLOGIES BIDCO LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2022 {Continued)

1.

(@

(r)

(s)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement - the Group determines the classification of its financial
liabilities at initial recognition. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

Subsequent measurement - the measurement of financial liabilities depends on their

classification, as described below:

+ Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - these include financial liabilities
held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. This includes derivatives not in a hedging relationship and
embedded derivatives that meet the separation criteria in IFRS 9. Financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are carried in the Statement of Financial Position at fair
value with net changes in fair value presented in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income: and

+« loans and borrowings - after initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrewings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance
expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Derecognition of financial liabifities - a liability 1s generally derecognised when the contract
that gives rise to it is settled, sold, cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, such that the
difference in the respective carrying amounts together with any costs or fees incurred are
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive iIncome.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Statement of
Financial Position cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair
value is measured using valuation techniques including the discounted cash flow (DCF)
model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible.
Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liguidity risk, credit risk and the
selection of appropriate discount curves, and other market inputs.

Classification of financial instruments

An instrument or its components, are classified on initial recognition as a financial asset,
financial liability or equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the requirements of IAS 32. The initial carrying value of a compound instruments are
allocated between the financial liability components and equity components, by first valuing
the financial liability on a stand-alone basis and allocating the residual value to the equity
component. Transaction costs are allocated between the companents an a relative fair value
basis.
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1.

()

(u)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each individual Group entity are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functionat
currency’).

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of each entity using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

For each entity, the Group determines the functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. On
consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into US dollars at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their statements of comprehensive
income are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. The
exchange differences arising cn translation for consoclidation are recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the spot rate of exchange at the
reporting date.

Taxation

The tax expense for the financial year comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax is
charged or credited to other comprehensive income if it relates to items that are charged or
credited to other comprehensive income. Similarly, current tax is charged or credited to equity
if it relates to items that are credited or charged directly to equity, otherwise, income tax is
recognised in profit or loss.

Current tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted for the financial year.

Deferred tax is recognised on all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements, except for
deferred tax assets which are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, carried forward tax
credits or tax losses can be utilised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured on an
undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply when the related asset is
realised or liability is settled, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the Statement of Financial Position date.

Due to the absence of control in the context of associates (significant influence only), deferred
tax liabilities are recognised where appropriate in respect of associates on the basis that the
exercise of significant influence would not necessarily prevent earnings being remitted by
other shareholders in the undertaking.

-30-



I-LOGIC TECHNOLOGIES BIDCO LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2022 (Continued)

1.
(u)

(v)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each Statement of Financial
Position date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

New standards and interpretations

New standards and interpretations effective 1 January 2022

The following amendments to standards have been adopted for the first time in these financial
statements:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Fees in the '10 per cent’ test for

derecognition of financial liabilities 1 January 2022
IFRS 3 Business Combinations — Reference to the Conceptual

Framework 1 January 2022
IAS 37 Onerous Contracts —Costs of Fulfilling a Contract 1 January 2022

Amendment to IFRS § Financial Instruments — Fees in the 10 per cent’ test for derecognition
of financial liabilities — the amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when
assessing whether the terms of a new or modified financial liability are substantially different
from the terms of the original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or received
between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower
or lender on the other's behalf.

These amendments did not have any impact an the assessment of debt modifications in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations — Reference to the Conceptual Framework
— the amendments are intended to replace a reference to the Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements, issued in 1989, with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements.

The Board also added an exception to the recognition principle of IFRS 3 to avoid the issue
of potential ‘day 2’ gains or losses arising for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be
within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 Levies, if incurred separately.

At the same time, the Board decided to clarify existing guidance in IFRS 3 for contingent
assets that would not be affected by replacing the reference to the Framewaork for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements.

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group,
but may impact future periods should the Group enter into any business combinations which
would have contingent assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities which are within the scope
of these amendments.

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract — in May 2021, the

IASB issued amendments to IAS 37 to specify which costs an entity needs to include when
assessing whether a contract is onerous or loss-making.
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1.

v)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

New standards and interpretations (continued)

New standards and inferprefations effective 1 January 2022 (continued)

The amendments apply a "directly related cost approach”. The costs that relate directly to a
contract to provide goods or services include both incremental costs and an allocation of
costs directly related to contract activities. General and administrative costs do not relate
directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the
counterparty under the contract.

The amendments did not have any impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements
as the adoption of these amendments did not result in identification of onerous contracts.

New standards and interpretations effective on and after 1 January 2023

Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Group's financial
statements are listed below. This listing is of relevant standards and interpretations issued,
which the Group reasonably expects to be applicable at a future date.

IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

— Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
Amendments to |AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IFRS

Practice Statement 2 — Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2023
IAS 12 Income Taxes — Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities

arising from a Single Transaction 1 January 2023
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification of Liabilities

as Current or Non-current 1 January 2024

Amendments to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors —
Definition of Accounting Estimates — in February 2022, the iIASB issued amendments to 1AS
8, in which it introduces a definition of ‘accounting estimates’. The amendments clarify the
distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and
the correction of errors. Also, they clarfy how entities use measurement techniques and
inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that
occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier application is permitted as long as this fact is
disctosed. The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group.

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2
— Disclosure of Accounting Policies — in February 2022, the IASB issued amendments to 1AS
1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements, in which it provides
guidance and examples to help entities apply materiality judgements to accounting policy
disclosures. The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that
are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant
accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and
adding guidance con how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about
accounting policy disclosures.
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(v}

ACCOUNTING POLICICS (Continued)

New standards and interpretations (continued)

New standards and interpretations effective on and after 1 January 2023 (continued)

The amendments to IAS 1 are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 with earlier application permitted. Since the amendments to the Practice Statement 2
provide non-mandatory guidance on the application of the definition of material to accounting
policy information, an effective date for these amendments is not necessary.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of the amendments to determine the impact they
will have on the Group's accounting policy disclosures.

Amendments to 1AS 12 Income Taxes — Deferred Tax refated fo Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction - the amendments require companies to recognise deferred tax
on transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal amounts of taxable and
deductible temporary differences. They will typically apply to transactions such as lessees
and decommissioning obligations and will require the recognition of additional deferred tax
assets and liabilities.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and sheuld be applied to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented. In addition, entities should recognise deferred tax assets (to
the extent that it is probable that they can be utilised) and deferred tax liabilities at the
beginning of the earliest comparative period for all deductible and taxable temporary
differences associated with:

* right-of-use assets and lease liabilities; and
« decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, and the corresponding amounts
recognised as part of the cost of the related assets.

The cumulative effect of recognising these adjustments is recognised in retained earnings,
or another component of equity, as appropriate. IAS 12 did not previously address how to
account for the tax effects of an-balance sheet leases and similar transactions and various
approaches were considered acceptable.

The Group is currently assessing the impact and will apply the amendments once effective.

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current — in January 2020, the IASB issued amendments to paragraphs 69
to 76 of IAS 1 to specify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-current.
The amendments clarify:

¢ What is meant by a right to defer settlement;

o That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period;

« That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its
deferral right;, and

« That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity
instrument would the terms of a liability not impact its ciassification.
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{v)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Centinued)

New standards and interpretations {continued)

New standards and interpretations effective on and affer 1 January 2023 (continued)

In November 2022, IASB issued additional amendments to modify the requirements
introduced by Classification of Liabilfities or Non-current on how an entity classifies debt and
cther financial liabilities as current or non-current in particular circumstances. The
amendment clarified that only covenants with which an entity is required to comply on or
before the reporting date affect the classification of a liability as current or non-current. In
additional an entity has to disclose information in the notes to the financial statements that
enables users of the financial statements to understand the risk that non-current liabilities
with covenants could became repayable within twelve months.

The amendments also defer the effective date of the 2020 amendments to 1 January 2024.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024 and must be applied retrospectively. The Group is currently assessing the impact the
amendments will have on current practice.

REVENUE

The Group derives its revenue from the following product categories and geographical
regions as follows:

Revenue from conltracts with customers:

UsS & Rest of the

EMEA Canada world Total

2022 2022 2022 2022

$000 $'000 3000 $000

Subscription revenue 182,014 214,330 65,248 461,592
Transaction revenue 7,490 3,976 6,817 18,283
Professional services 11,135 5,356 12,042 28,533
200,639 223,662 84107 508,408

UsS & Rest of the

EMEA Canada world Total

2021 2021 2021 2021

3000 3000 3000 $000

Subscription revenue 184,991 169,035 67,458 421,484
Transaction revenue 21,071 12,317 8977 42 365
Professional services 12,663 4 393 15,5613 32,569
218,725 185,745 91,948 496,418
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2.

REVENUE {Continued)

The Group typically invoices clients annually in advance for all contract revenue streams
except for professional service revenue, which can be either billed in advance or on
satisfaction of milestones and transaction revenue which is billed monthly in arrears. As such,
substantially all deferred revenue at the end of an accounting year will be recognised in the
following year, with the exception of contracts where revenue recognition is deferred due to
uncertainty over payment.

Accrued revenue primarily relates to the Group's rights to consideration for work completed
but not billed at the reporting date. Deferred revenue primarily relates to the advance
consideration received from customers for contracts, for which revenue will be recognised on
satisfaction of performance obligations in subsequent periods.

In addition to the contract balances disclosed below, the Group has also recognised a
contract asset in relation to costs to obtain a contract. This is presented within intangible
assets in the Statement of Financial Position.

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
Accrued revenue at the beginning of the year 1673 2
Deferred revenue at the beginning of the year (267,233) (262,122)
Net deferred revenue at the beginning of the year (265,560) (262,120)
Invoices raised in the year (542,279) (544,206)
Revenue recognised in the year
tincluded in the deferred revenue at the beginning of the
year 248,333 251,002
Relating to performance obligations satisfied from
invoices raised in the current year 251,126 292 342
Relating to performance obligations satisfied from
accrued revenue in the current year 8,949 1,669
Foreign exchange 549 (4,247)
Accrued revenue at the end of the year 10,623 1673
Deferred revenue at the end of the year (309,505) (267,233)
Net deferred revenue at the end of the year (298,882) (265,560)

The Group does not disclose the amount of the transaction price allocated io the remaining
performance obligations and when it expects to recognise that amount as revenue, in
accordance with paragraph 121 and B16 of IFRS 15.
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3 OPERATING PROFIT
2022 2021
$000 $000
Operating profit is stated after charging / (crediting).
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets 8,996 11,619
Amortisation of intangible assets 179,358 161,323
Short-term / low-value leases expense 4,197 1,166
Foreign exchange gains (57,296) (86,442)
Operating sub-lease income 501 501

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets includes write downs
of right-of-use assets of $2.0 million (2021: $1.2 million).

4, AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION
2022 2021
3000 $000
Audit of individual company accounts 684 684
Taxation — —
684 684
5. DIRECTOR'S REMUNERATION

The director did not receive any remuneration for his qualifying services to the Company

(2021: nil).
6. STAFF COSTS

2022 2021
$'000 3006
Wages and salaries 133,676 141,188
Social welfare costs 10,330 9,898
Pension costs 5474 5,781
149,480 156,867
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6.

STAFF COSTS (Continucd)

2022 2021
¥ 000 §000

Staff costs are spiit as follows:
Capitalised in the year 27,468 18,950
Expensed in the year 122,012 137,917
149,480 156,867

The average number of employees including executive director, during the year was as

follows:
2022 2021
No. No.
Administration 103 133
Client services 119 76
Sales 154 212
Development 1,226 1,364
1,602 1,785
FINANCE INCOME
2022 2021
$000 $000
Interest on bank deposits and other interest 2 13
Interest income on loans to parent undertakings 5,204 2,130
Interest income on loans to fellow subsidiary
undertakings 495 834
Interest income on loans tc other related parties 48 -
Fair value gain on deferred payment 5,466 -
Gain on debt medification 404 -
11,619 2977
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8. FINANCE EXPENSES
2022 2021
$'000 $000
Interest on lcans and borrowings 107,613 89,550
Amortisation of debt issuance costs 3,113 8,856
Interest on lease liabilities 1,444 1,624
Charges on early repayment of borrowings - 49,679
Interest expense on loans from fellow subsidiary
undertakings 6,068 438
Interest expense on loans from parent undertakings 713 —
Write oft of debt issuance costs on refinanced
borrowings - 33,088
Other finance fees 244 3,381
119,195 186,616
9 TAX
2022 2021
$000 $000
(a) Tax on profit / (loss)
The tax charge is made up as follows:
Current tax:
Corporation tax 7,146 2,709
Foreign tax 18,154 15,314
Adjustment in respect of prior periods relating to current
period events (562) (2.240)
Total current tax 24,738 15,783
Deferred tax:
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (24,278) (19,365)
Adjustment in respect of prior periods relating to current
period events 967 (2,023)
Effect of changes in deferred tax rate 5,714 55,868
Total deferred tax (17.597) 34,480
Tax on profit / (loss) {riote 9 (b)) 7.141 50,263

Included within the deferred tax charge is the revaluation of deferred tax assets and liabilities
related to the United Kingdom as a result of changes in the corporate tax rate from 19% to
25% effective 1 April 2023 in that jurisdiction as a result of the Finance Bill 2022.
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9. TAX (Continued)

(b) Factors affecting tax expense for the year:
The tax assessed for the year differs from that calculated by applying the standard rate of
corporation tax in the United Kingdom of 19.0%. The differences are explained below:

2022 2021
$000 $000
Profit / (Loss) before tax 4,809 (23,478)
Accounting profit / (loss) before tax multiplied by
the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of
19% (2021: 19%) 914 (4,480)
Effects of:
[tems not deductible for tax purposes 8,889 6,203
Income not chargeable for tax purposes - (899)
Effect of changes in deferred tax rate 5714 55,680
(Lower) / higher rate tax on overseas earnings (9,984) (6,587)
Changes in the previously unrecognised deferred
tax assets 2,209 4,992
Losses utlised in the period (1,016) (1,303)
Adjustment in respect of prior periods relating to
current period events - corporation tax (562) {(2,240)
Adjustment in respect of prior periods relating to
current period events - deferred tax 967 (2,023)
Tax on profit / (loss) (note 9 (a)) 7,141 50,263
(c) Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) 2022 2021
$000 $000
Included in non-current assets 610 549
Included in non-current liabilities (289,412) (306,615)
(288,802) (3086,086)
2022 2021
$000 $'000
Decelerated capital allowances 1,138 21
Tax losses 12,401 13,166
Restricted interest expense 29,961 41,830
Other short term temporary differences 10,940 8,023
Intangibles (343,240) {369,296)
(288,802) {306,066)
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9. TAX (Continued)
(c) Deferred tax assels / (liabilities) (continued)
2022 2021
$000 $000
At 1 January (306,066) (271,437)
Deferred tax credit / (charge) in Group
Statement of Comprehensive income 17,597 (34,480)
Foreign exchange (333) (149)
At 31 December (288,802) (306,066)

(d) Circumnstances affecting future tax charges:

The tax charge in future periods will be impacted by any changes to the corporation tax rates
and rules in force in the countries in which the Group operates. For exampie, in December
2021, the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD) published
model rules outlining a structure for a new global 15% minimum tax regime to be implemented
by all participating countries at an agreed future date, currently expected to be 2024. Detailed
commentary on the rules was released by the OECD during 2022. None of the countries in
which the Group operates has enacted or substantively enacted Pillar Two Model Rules as
at 31 December 2022. The Group continues to monitor developments as they may apply to
the Group and is awaiting the legislation and detailed guidance to assess the full implications

in the jurisdictions in which the Company operates.
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I-LLOGIC TECHNOLOGIES BIDCO LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2022 (Continued)

10.

11.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continucd)

Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives impairment review

The Group performed its annual impairment test in December 2022 and 2021. The
recoverable amount is based either on cash flow projections from financial budgets approved
by senior management or observable EBITDA or revenue multiples as adjusted and applied
to the forecasted EBITDA,

The key assumpticns for the value in use calculations are the discount rate applied, future
growth rate of the revenue and the operating margin. These take into account the existing
customer base and expected revenue commitments from it, anticipated additional sales to
existing and new customers, planned expansicn of product and service offerings to the
marketplace and the specific market trends that are currently seen and those expected in
the future. Where cash flow projections are used they are discounted using pre-tax discount
rates applied to cash flow projections of 9% (2021: 8%} and cash flows beyond the projection
period are extrapolated using a growth rate of 2% (2021: 2%). No impairments were
indicated (2021: none indicated). Goodwill is allocated to one cash generating unit which has
been determined based on product lines (2021: one).

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Company Company

2022 2021
Investments in subsidiaries $000 $'000
Carrying value at 1 January 2,086,384 994,461
Additions during the year 894,224 1,091,923
Carrying value at 31 December 2,980,608 2,085,384

The carrying value of the Company’s investment represents the investment in its directly
held subsidiary undertakings.

In 2022, the Company made capital contributions into its subsidiary Diamond Topco Limited
arising from an internal re-organisation within the Group.

On 16 February 2021, the Company acquired 100% of the share capital in Acuris Bidco

Limited, Acuris Finance S.a r.l. and Acuris Finance US Inc. through a series of share for
share exchanges.
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I-LOGIC TECHNOLOGIES BIDCO LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2022 {Continued)

12. INVCSTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

2022 2021

$000 $'000
Carrying value at 1 January 3,958 -
On acquisition - 3,958
Share of net profit in an associate - -
Exchange adjustments {(409) -
Carrying value at 31 December 3,549 3,958

On 22 April 2021, the Group acguired 40.0% of ordinary shares issued by Identity
Intelligence Limited, a provider of compliance data and analytics. The registered office
address of ldentity Intelligence Limited is at Terminal House, Station Approach, Shepperton,
TWH17 8AS, United Kingdom.
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I-LOGIC TECHNOLOGIES BIDCO LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2022 (Continued)

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Leasehold Office  Right-of-use
improvements  equipment assets Total
$°000 $000 3000 £600

Group
Cost
At 1 January 2021 5818 9,910 38,235 53,963
Acguired during the year 561 - 2,048 2,609
Additions during the year - 584 479 1,063
Disposals during the year (7) (594) — (601}
Exchange adjustments (239) (586) (431) {1,256)
At 31 December 2021 6,133 9,314 40,331 55,778
Additions during the year 18 619 4,302 4939
Disposals during the year - (739) - (739)
Exchange adjustments (308) (548) (550) (1,406}
At 31 December 2022 5,843 8,646 44 083 58,572
Depreciation and
impairment
At 1 January 2021 3,371 7,296 18,990 29,657
Charge for the year 1,610 1,575 8,434 11,619
Disposals during the year ] (594) - (601)
Exchange adjustments (328) (478) (384) (1,190}
At 31 December 2021 4,646 7,799 27,040 39 485
Charge for the year 641 1,119 5,252 7,012
Impairment during the year - - 1,984 1,984
Disposals during the year - (717) - (717)
Exchange adjustments (247) (353) (550) (1,150)
At 31 December 2022 5,040 7,848 33,726 46,614
Net book vaiue at 31
December 2022 803 798 10,357 11,958
Net book value at 31
December 2021 1,487 1,515 13,291 16,293
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I-LOGIC TECHNOLOGIES BIDCO LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2022 (Continued)

14

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group Company Group Company
2022 2022 2021 2021
$000 $oo00 $'000 $000
Non-current assets
Security deposits 782 - - -
782 - - -
Current assets
Trade receivables 155,849 - 111,840 —
Prepayments 7,081 — 8,347 -
Accrued revenue 10,623 - 1,673 -
Other debtors and deposits 14,405 — 13,377 -
Amounts owed from fellow
subsidiary undertakings 4,309 2,629 2,646 2,396
Amounts owed from parent
undertakings 118,539 69,541 113,703 67,270
Amounts owed from other
related parties 1,548 - — —
Amounts owed from subsidiary
undertakings - 38,451 - 43,484
Corporation tax - - 690 -

312,454 110,621 252,278 113,150

Amounts owed from parent undertakings

Amounts owed from parent undertakings refer to loans extended to parent undertakings. The
loans carried an interest rate between 4.0% to 9.5% (2021: 3 4% to 6.0%). Amounts owed
from parent undertakings are repayable on demand.

Amounts owed from subsidiary undertakings
Amounts owed from subsidiary undertakings refer ta trade balance extended to subsidiary
undertakings and are repayable on demand.

Amounts owed from fellow subsidiary undertakings

Amounts owed from fellow subsidiary undertakings refer to trade balances and loans
extended to fellow subsidiary undertakings. The loans carried an interest rate of 5.5% (2021
5.5%). Amounts owed from fellow subsidiary undertakings are repayabie on demand.

Amounts owed from other related parties

Amounts owed from other related parties refer to loans extended to other related parties of
the Group. Refer to note 23 for further details.
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I-LOGIC TECHNOLOGIES BIDCO LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2022 (Continued)

14.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Expected credit losses on trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Group’'s established
policy, procedures and controls relating to customer credit risk management. Outstanding
customer receivables are reqularly monitored. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing
and are generally issued with credit terms of 0 - 30 days.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using the provision matrix below
to measure the ECL. The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments with similar loss patterns. The calculation of the ECL reflects reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. Loss rates are based on actual credit
loss experience over a period of at least 6 years. These rates are multiplied by scalar factors
to reflect differences between economic conditions during the period over which the historical
data has been collected, current conditions and the Group's view of economic conditions
over the expected lives of the receivables. Set out below is the information about the credit
risk exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2022

{5'000): Current 0-360 Over 360 Total
Expected credit loss rate % 0.1% 1.1% 87.2%

Gross carrying amount 84 637 71,568 5,050 161,255
ECL (77) (823) (4,406) {5,306)
Net carrying amount 84 560 70,745 644 155,949
Past due but not impaired - 70,745 644 71,389

As at 31 December 2021

($'000): Current 0-360 Over 360 Total
Expected credit loss rate % 0.1% 1.3% 87 7%

Gross carrying amount 81,523 30,408 3,280 115,209
ECL (82) (410) (2,877) {3,369)
Net carrying amount 81,441 29,996 403 111,840
Past due but not impaired - 29,996 403 30,339
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I-LOGIC TECHNOLOGIES BIDCO LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2022 {Continued)

14.

15.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Expected credit losses on trade receivables:

2022 2021
$000 $000
As at 1 January 3,369 2,587
On acquisition - 205
Provision for expected credit losses 1,781 1,027
Write-off of invoices (53) (440}
Foreign exchange movement 209 (10}
As at 31 December 5,306 3,369
SHAREHOLDERS FUNDS
CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL 31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Group and Company $000 $'000
Authorised, alfotted, called up and fully paid
6,744,500 Ordinary Shares of $1.00 each (2021:
6,744,500 Ordinary Shares of $1.00 each) 6,745 6,745

RIGHTS OF SHARES

Ordinary Shares have fuil voting and dividend rights and a right to a return of capital being
the surplus of assets after payment of all liabilities upon liquidation, reduction in capital or
otherwise.

SHARE PREMIUM ACCOUNT
This reserve records the consideration for the issuance of shares above the nominal value
of the shares issued.

OTHER RESERVES

Other reserves consist of merger reserve. The merger reserve reflects the impact of commaon
control tfransactions as a result of Group reconstructions. The Group had a merger reserve
at the end of 2022 of $553.2 million (2021: $553.2 million).

On consolidation, any difference (merger adjustment) between the carrying value of the
investment in the subsidiary and the aggregate of the nominal value of the subsidiary’s
shares, together with any share premium account and capital redemption reserve of the
subsidiary is taken to other reserves.

On 16 February 2021, as part of a Group reorganisation, the Company acquired the shares
of Acuris Bidco Limited, Acuris Finance S.4 r.l. and Acuris Finance US, Inc. from Acuris
International Limited, through a series of share-for-share exchanges. This reorganisation is
a common control transaction.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2022 (Continued)

15.

16.

SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS (Continued)

DIVIDENDS
During the year, the Company declared and paid dividends of $251.8 million (2021: $24.9
million).

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

For the purpose of the Group's capital management, capital includes issued capital, share
premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The
primary objective of the Group's capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.
The Group’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets
financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans which were all satisfied {2021:
satisfied).

OTHER LIABILITIES

Group Company Group Comnpany

2022 2022 2021 2021

000 £000 3000 $'000

Deferred payment 91,700 - 97,166 -

Lease liabilities 10,408 - 10,846 -
Amounts owed to fellow

subsidiary undertakings™ - - - 632,024

102,108 - 108,012 632,024

* Amounts owed to fellow subsidiary undertakings comprise lcan balances. tn 2021, the
icans from fellow subsidiary undertakings carried interest rate between 4.5% to 6.5% and
were due on demand.

Deferred payment

In connection with the acquisition of Backstop (refer tc note 26), the total consideration
includes a deferred payment. The fair value of the deferred payment was $91.7 million (2021:
$97.2 million} and was determined using a multivariate Monte Carlo simulaticn model. Fair
value movements are recognised as a gain / (loss) in the statement of comprehensive
income: refer to note 7. Significant unobservable inputs in valuing the deferred payment were
revenue growth rate and revenue volatility.

An increase in the revenue growth and revenue volatility will result in an increase in fair value
of the deferred payment.

All of the above balances are falling due after one year. Refer to note 18 (ii) for maturity
analysis of these balances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2022 (Continued)

17.

18.

PROVISIONS
Reinstatement Other Total
pravisions provisions provisions
$000 $'000 $000

Group

As at 1.lanuary 2021 71 767 838
Accreted in the year - - -
Released in the year (30) - (30)
Exchange adjustments - - -
As at 31 December 2021 41 767 808
Accreted in the year - - -
Released in the year (41) - (41}
Exchange adjustment - 10 10
As at 31 December 2022 - 77T 777

The year-end provisions are classified as follows:

2022 2021

3000 3000
Current - -
Non-current 777 808
As at 31 December 777 808
Other provisions

These consist of a number of potential uncertain liabilities arising out of trading activities
where the assessment of economic cutflow is considered probable.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
Debt - Changes lo facilities during the year

On 13 April 2022, the Group drew down incremental EUR loan of €200.0 million and USD
loan of $200.0 million under the existing debt facilities, respectively.

On 29 September 2022, the Group drew down on $9.0 million on the revolver, this was
subseguently repaid on 30 November 2022.

Debt - Changes to facilities in prior year

On 16 February 2021, the Group refinanced its existing debt by drawing down USD and EUR
credit facilities amounting to $960.0 million and €790.0 million and paid off its existing debt.
The USD and EUR credit facilities carry interest of US Libor / Euribor plus 4.0% and extended
the maturity to 16 February 2028. The refinancing transaction resulted in an early repayment
charge of $49.7m and a write off of debt issuance costs of $33.1m (note 8).

On 13 May 2021, the Group issued bonds of $350.0 million with fixed interest rate of 50%
maturing cn 1 May 2028. The proceeds from the bonds were used to partially repay the
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2022 (Continued)

18.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK (Continued)

Debt - Changes to facilities in prior year {continued)
principal amount of the USD credit facility by $310.0 million. The refinancing transaction
resulted in the loss on debt repurchase of $2.3 million.

On refinancing, an analysis is undertaken to evaluate if the refinancing represents an
extinguishment of the original facility and the issuance of a new facility or the modification of
an existing facility. To the extent that the refinance is considered an extinguishment of the
originai facility, the related deferred financing costs are expensed to the Statement of
Comprehensive Incecme. To the extent that the refinance is considered a modification, the
deferred financing costs continue to be deferred.

The key terms of the new facilities are set out below.

2022 2021

Maturity of loans - amaunts repayable: $'000 $'000
Within one year 13,294 8,896
13,294 8,896

In more than one year but not more than two years 10,635 17,792
In more than two years but not more than five years 21,270 26,689
In more than five years 2,202,335 1,834,012
Less: debt issuance costs (18,111) (16,590)
Total non-current loans 2,216,129 1,861,903
Total loans 2,229,423 1,870,799

Key terms of the debl and revolver facilities
The debt and key terms of the debt and revoiver facilities available to the Group are set out
below:

2022 2021
Facility Issued  Amortisation  Matunity interest Rate &m ¥m
$350m 2021 N/A May 2028 5.0% 350.0 3500
$850m 2021 N/A Feb 2028 SOFR + 4.0%" 850.0 650.0
€982m 2021 1.0% p.a Feb 2028 Euribor + 4.0%% 1,047.5 887.4
Available but nol drawn
$20m revolver 2021 N/A Feb 2026 US Libor + 4.0%" - -
Less: Debt issuance costs (18.1) (16.6)
Total debt 22294 1,870.8

* Subject to floor of 0.5%
* subject to floor of 1.0%
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18

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK (Continued)

Key terms of the debt and revolver facilities (continued)

The Group’s USD credit facilities were exposed to US Libor and transitioned to risk-free
rates (RFR) in 2021. The Group used the practical expedients of 2021 amendments of IFRS
9 and IFRS 7 related to interest rate benchmark reform. All of the Group's floating rate debt
obligations, have provisions inciuded for the IBOR transition and as such there was no
impact for these facility documents. For the Group's USD credit facilities, we transitioned to
the Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR) benchmark on 16 February 2021 The
Group’'s EUR credit facilities reference Euribor rates thus these are not impacted by the
IBOR reforms.

Financial risk

The Group’s muitinational operations expose it to various financial risks that include credit
risk, liquidity risk, currency risk and interest rate risk. The Group has a risk management
programme in place which seeks to limit the impact of these risks on the financial
performance of the Group. This note presents information about the Group's exposure to
each of the above risks and the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring
and managing the risk.

The director has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s
risk management framewocrk. The director has reviewed the process for identifying and
evaluating the significant risks affecting the business and the policies and procedures by
which these risks will be managed effectively.

Credit risk

Exposure to credit risk

Credit risk arises from credit extended to customers and related parties arising on
outstanding receivables and outstanding transactions as well as cash and cash equivalents
and deposits with banks and financial institutions.

Trade and other receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of
each customer. There is no significant concentration of credit risk by dependence on
individual customers or geographically. The Group has a large exposure to the financial
services industry and the credit risk profile of the Group could be adversely affected by
significant changes in that industry.

The Group has detailed procedures for assessing and managing the credit risk related to its
trade receivables based on experience, customer’s track record and historic default rates.
The Group actively follows up on all overdue debtors. The aging profile and the details of
the provision are given in note 14 to the financial statements.

Financial instruments, cash and short-term bank deposits

Financial instruments, cash and short-term bank deposits are invested with institutions with
the highest credit rating with limits on amounts held with individual banks or institutions at
any one time. The carrying amount of financial assets, net of impairment provisions
represents the Group's maximum credit exposure.
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31 December 2022 (Continued)

18.

(ii)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK {Continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financiai obligations as
they fall due. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure as far as possible
that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal

and stressed conditions without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the

Group's reputation.

It is the policy of the Group to have adequate committed undrawn facilities available at all
times to cover unanticipated financing requirements.

The following are the carrying values and the contractual cashflows of the financial liabilities,
including estimated interest payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements:

At 31 December 2022:

Accounts payable and
other payables

Amounts owed to fellow
subsidiary undertakings
Amounts owed to parent
undertakings

Lease liabilities

Deferred payment

Loans and related interest
payable

At 31 December 2021:

Accounts payable and
other payables

Amounts owed to fellow
subsidiary undertakings
Amounts owed to parent
undertakings

Lease liabilities

Deferred payment

Loans and related interest
payable

Carrying No set Lessthan One to five QOver five
value maturity one year years years
$000 3000 3000 $'000 $'000

117,112 78,910 38,202 - -

98,982 98,982 — - -
12,5688 12,588 - - -
16,157 - 6,779 11,156 -
91,700 - - 112,750 -
2,257 877 - 177,428 2,783,717 -
2,594 416 190,480 222,409 2,917,623 -

Carrying No set Less than  One to five Qver five
value maturity one year years years
$000 $000 $000 $'000 §'000

121,190 91,042 30,148 - -

332,823 332,823 - - -

11,530 11,530 - - -
18,112 - 7.270 13,378 -
97,166 - - 97,166 -
1,870,799 - 90,994 449,614 1,841,619
2,451,620 435,395 128,412 560,158 1,841,619
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18.

(iii)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK (Continued)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cashflows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, and interest
rates. It will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.
The objective of the Group’s risk management strategy is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return earned by the Group.

The Group has two types of market risk namely currency risk and interest rate risk each of
which are dealt with as follows:

Currency risk
Foreign exchange risk arises from assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies.

Management requires all Group companies to manage their foreign exchange risk against
their functional currency.

The Group is exposed to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates arising from financing
activities, where debt is not in the functional currency of the entity and no hedging
arrangements have been put in place.

The Group is also exposed to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates on the Group’s
operating activities when revenue is denominated in a foreign currency and the Group’s net
investments in foreign subsidiaries. Overall, the Group seeks to hedge its operating foreign
exchange exposure by matching the income and liabilities in each currency and additionally
financing any acquisitions of significant transactions in the currency of the acquired entity or
acquired asset.

The Group’s materiai exposures to foreign currency risk for amounts not denominated in the
functional currency of the relevant entities at the Statement of Financial Position date were
as follows:

EUR GBFP usb
At 31 December 2022: 3000 $000 $000
Cash and cash equivalents 343 3,470 28,495
Trade and other receivables 5,638 4 266 71,912
Debt (83,904) - (938,505)
Net Statement of Financial
Position exposure (77,923) 7,736 (838,098)

EUR GBP Usp
At 31 December 2021: 3000 3000 3000
Cash and cash equivalents 774 626 19,001
Trade and other receivables 2,830 1,755 42 738
Debt (882,339) - -
Net Statement of Financial
Position exposure (878,735) 2,381 61,739
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18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK {Continued)
(iii) Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

A 5% strengthening or weakening of the exchange rates in respect of the translation of
amounts not denominated in the functional currency of relevant entities into the functional
currency would impact on the profit / (loss) before tax by the amounts shown below. This
assumes that all other variables remain constant.

At 31 December 2022: EUR GBP UsD
Impact on profit before tax $'000 3'000 3000
Impact of 5% strengthening (3,896) 387 (41,904)
Impact of 5% weakening 3,896 (387) 41,904
At 31 December 2021: EUR GBP USD
Impact on loss before tax §000 $000 $000
Impact of 5% strengthening (43,936) 119 3,085
impact of 5% weakening 43,936 {119) (3,086)

interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to the
Group’s long-term debt borrowings which are subject to floating rate. The Group’s policy is
tc manage its interest risk using a mix of fixed and variable rate debt.

The interest rate profile of the Group's borrowings is as follows:

Floating Fixed
Interest Rate Interest Rate
3600 $000

External borrowings
2022 1,897,534 350,000
2021 1,537,389 350,000

The floating rate debt is subject to an interest rate floor of 0.5% - 1%. The table below
examines the effect that a 50-basis point increase or decrease in Euribor/ SOFR would have
on profit / (loss) before tax over a one year period:

2022 2021
Increase / (decrease) on profit / (loss) before tax $000 $600
Impact of a 50 basis point increase in Euribor / (9,488) (7.,687)
SOFR
Impact of a 50 basis point decrease in Euribor / 9,488 7,687
SOFR

Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and financial liabilities

All financial assets and financial liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
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1R

(i)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK (Continued)

Market risk (continued)
Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)}

« Level 1. Quoted (unadjusted) prices in an active market tor 1dentical assets or
liabilities,

* Level 2: Other technigues for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly; and

+ Level 3: Techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded
fair value that are not based on observable market data

For all material categories of financial assets and financial liabilities the carrying amounts
are reasonable approximations of fair values. Management assessed that the carrying
amounts of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other receivables, trade and other
payables, bank overdrafts and other current liabilities approximate their fair values largely
due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

Management assessed that the carrying value of long-term borrowings, except for the bonds
issued by the Group in May 2021, are determined to approximate their fair value largely due
to the floating interest rate repricing to market and there being no change in either the credit
or liquidity risk of the external borrowings. The fair value of the bonds issued by the Group
amounted to $276.3 million as at 31 December 2022 (2021: $346.5 million) with a carrying
value of $347 1 million (2021: $346.6 million) determined based on the Level 1 input (Quoted

market price).

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

2022 2022 2022 2022

$'000 3000 $000 $'000

Loans from fellow Loans from

Lease subsidiary parent

Debt Liabilities undertakings undertaking

At 1 January 2022 1,870,799 18,112 270,338 11,530
Created at acquisition - - - -
Cashflow 323,200 (7.657) (252,950) -
Foreign exchange (46,444) - - —
Other 110,322 5,702 6,068 1,058
At 31 December 2022 2,257 877 16,157 23,456 12,588
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18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK (Continucd)

(iv) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (continued)
2021 2021 2021 2021
$'000 $°000 $'000 $000
Loans from feliow Loans from
Lease subsidiary parent
Debt Liabilities underfakings undertaking
At 1 January 2021 1,864 424 23,721 - -
Created at acquisition 30,500 2,047 - -
Cashflow (76,014) (8,282) 268,900 11,530
Foreign exchange (80,675) 68 - -
Other 132,664 1,558 438 -
At 31 December 2021 1,870,799 18,112 270,338 11,530

Other mainly includes profit or loss movements and recognition of new lease arrangements.

19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group Company Group Company
2022 2022 2021 2021
3000 $0600 3000 3000
Trade creditors 12,863 - 5,823 -
Accruals 64,757 312 79,165 312
Deferred revenue 309,505 - 267,233 -
Amounts owed to fellow subsidiary
undertakings 98,982 1,209 332,823 1,893
Amounts owed to parent
undertakings 12,688 12,588 11,530 11,530
Amounts owed to subsidiary
undertakings - 1,709,611 - -
Lease liabilities 5,749 - 7,266 -
Interest payable 28,454 - 3,040 —
Other creditors 27,673 - 33,165 -
Corporation Tax 11,818 - - —
572,390 1,723,720 740,045 13,735

Trade creditors which pertains to trading balances are all due within one year, unsecured
and interest free.

Amounts owed fo subsidiary undertakings

Amounts owed to fellow subsidiary undertakings comprise trading and loan balances. The
loans to fellow subsidiary undertakings carried interest rates between 1.3% to 5% (2021
5%) and are due on demand.
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19.

20.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Countinued)

Amounts owed to parent undertakings
Amounts owed to parent undertakings comprise loan balance. The loans to parent
undertakings carried interest rate between 6.1% (2021: 6.1%) and are due on demand.

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings comprise trading and loan balances. The loans
to subsidiary undertakings carried interest rate between 4.0% to 8.2% (2021: 4.0% to 5.0%)
and are due on demand.

LEASES

The Group leases land and buildings for its office space. The leases of office space typically
run for a period between 1 and 15 years. The Group has also entered into an operating sub-
lease arrangement on one (2021: one) of its leased properties. Refer to note 18(ii) for the
maturity analysis of lease liabilities, note 18(iv) for the changes in lease liabilities and to note
13 for the roll forward of right-of-use assets.

Operating Sub-lease

The Group entered into sub-lease arrangements for a certain office spaces which are no
longer used by the Group. The Group classified these leases as operating lease because
they do not substantially transfer all of the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of
the leased assets.

During 2022, the Group recognised lease income of $0.5 million (2021: $0.5 million} from
these sub-lease arrangements.

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating Ileases as at 31
December 2022 fall due as follows:

2022 2021
3000 $000
Within one year 501 501
In two to five years 696 1,198
Total undiscounted lease receivable 1,197 1,699
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21. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

The subsidiary undertakings of the Company all of which are 100% directly or indirectly
owned, as at 31 December 2022, are set out below. All shareholdings are in ordinary shares:

Name

A2 Access LLC

Acuris Bidco Limited

Acurns Finance SARL

Acuris Finance US Inc.

Acuris Inc.

Acuris Risk Intelligence
Holdings Limited™*

Acuris Risk Inteliigence
Limited

Acuris RMN SRL

ARI Enhanced Limited

Backstop Solutions
Group LLC

Backstop Solutions UK
Limited

Blackpeak (Hong
Kong) Limited

Blackpeak Japan KK

Blackpeak (Singapocre)
Pte Limited

Nature of Business

Provision of software
and data

Holding company

Finance company

Finance company

Provider of information
services

Holding company
Provider of information

services

Provider of information
technology services

Provider of information
services

Provision of software
and data

Provision of software
and data

Provider of business
support services

Provider of business
support services

Provider of business
support services
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Registered Office

CT Corporation System, 160 Mine
Lake, CT STE 200, Raleigh, NC
27615-6417, USA

C/O lon, 10 Queen St Place, 2nd
Floor, London, EC4R 1BE, UK

63-65 Rue de Merl, L-2146
Luxembourg

The Corporation Trust Company,
1209 Orange Street, Wilmington,
Delaware 19801, USA

National Registered Agents, Inc.,
160 Greentree Drive, Suite 101,
Dover, Delaware 19804, USA

C/O lon, 10 Queen St Place, 2nd
Floor, London, EC4R 1BE, UK

C/O lon, 10 Queen St Place, 2nd
Floor, London, EC4R 1BE, UK

4D Gara Herastrau St, Building C,
5th floor, Office 9, 2nd District,
Bucharest, Romania

C/Q lon, 10 Queen St Place, 2nd
Floor, London, EC4R 1BE, UK

Corporation Trust Center, 1208
QOrange Street, Wilmington, New
Castle, Delaware, 19801, USA

5 Yeomans Court, Ware Road,
Hertford, SG13 7HJ, England

4/F & 11/F, 20 Stanley Street,
Hong Kong

5th Floor, Daisan Daiei Building, 7-
18-8 Roppongi, Minato-ku, Tokyo,
106-0032, Japan

63 Market Street, #06-02 Bank of
Singapore Centre, Singapore,
048942
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21

SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS (Continued)

Name

Blackpeak (Shanghai)
Business Consulting
Company Limited

Blackpeak Inc.

Blue Holdco, Inc.

Blue Investment Group,
Inc.**

Capital Data Limited**
Computasoft
Consulting Limited

Computasoft e-
Commerce Limited

Computasoft, inc.

Credit Rubric Limited*
Creditflux Limited
Dealogic Americas
Limited

Dealogic APAC Limited

Dezlcgic Asia Pacific
Limited

Dealogic (Australia) Pty
Limited

Dealogic EMEA Limited
Dealogic (Holdings)
Limited

Dealogic Hungary Kft.

Nature of Business
Provider of business
support services
Provider of business

support services

Holding company

Holding company

Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

Holding company

Provider of information
services

Provider of information
services
Holding company

Holding company

Provision of software
and data

Group support services

Holding company

Holding company

Group support services
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Registered Office

26F, Hang Seng Bank Tower, 1000
Lujiazui Ring Road, Pudong New
Area, Shanghai, 200120, PR China

1750 K St NW, Suite 450,
Washington DC, 20006, USA

Corporation Trust Center, 1209
Orange Street, Wilmington, New
Castle, Delaware, 19801, USA

Corporation Trust Center, 1209
Orange Street, Wilmington, New
Castle, Delaware, 19801, USA

10 Queen Street Place, London
EC4R 1BE, England

10 Queen Street Place, London
EC4R 1BE, England

10 Queen Street Place, London
EC4R 1BE, England

Corporation Service Company, 251
Little Falls Drive, Wilmington, New
Castle, Delaware, 19808, USA

C/O lon, 10 Queen St Place, 2nd
Floor, London, EC4R 1BE, UK

C/O lon, 10 Queen St Place, 2nd
Floor, Londen, EC4AR 1BE, UK

10 Queen Street Place, London
EC4R 1BE, England

10 Queen Street Place, London
EC4R 1BE, England

36/F Tower Two, Times Square, 1
Matheson St, Causeway Bay, Hong
Kong

RSM Bird Cameron, 60 Castlereagh
Street, Sydney 2000, Australia

10 Queen Street Place, London
EC4R 1BE, England

10 Queen Street Place, London
EC4R 1BE, England

Teréz korut 55-57, Eiffel Square B-
5, H-1062 Budapest, Hungary
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21. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS (Continued)

Name Mature of Business Registered Office

Dealogic Information Provision of software 1415 China World Office 1, 1
Solutions (Beijing} and data Jianguomenwai Avenue, Beijing
Limited 100004, China

Dealogic Japan Limited Group support services 10 Queen Street Place, London
EC4R 1BE, England

Dealogic, LLC Provision of software Corporation Service Company, 251
and data Little Falis Drive, Wilmington, New
Castle, Delaware, 19808, USA
Dealogic Limited Provision of software 10 Queen Street Place, Londen
and data EC4R 1BE, England
Dealogic Solugdes Provision of software  Av. Brigadeiro Faria Lima, 3729, 4th
Brasil Limitada and data and 5th floors, Sao Paulo 04538-
908, Brazil
Dealogic Singapore Group support services 10 Queen Street Place, London
Limited** EC4R 1BE, England
Dealogic Support Group support services 911, 9th Fioor, Platina C-59, G-
Services India Private Block, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Limited Bandra East, Mumbai 400 051,
India
Diamond Bidco Limited Holding company 10 Queen Street Place, London

EC4R 1BE, England

Diamond Midco Limited Holding company 10 Queen Street Place, London
EC4R 1BE, England

Diamond Topco Holding company 10 Queen Street Place, London
Limited EC4R 18E, England
Great North Road Provider of business 1501 Broadway, 8th Floor, New
Media Inc support services York, NY 10036, USA
Hoxton Holdings Hoiding company C/Q lon, 10 Queen St Place, 2nd
Limited™* Floor, London, EC4R 1BE, UK
Identity Theft Provider of information  C/O Ion, 10 Queen St Place, 2nd
Prevention Limited™* services Floor, London, EC4R 1BE, UK
infraAmericas Inc. Provider of information  National Registered Agents Inc.,
services 160 Greentree Drive, Suite 101,
Dover, Delaware 19904, USA
inframation Limited Provider of infermation  C/Q lon, 10 Queen St Place, 2nd
services Floor, Londen, EC4R 1BE, UK

Junction RDS Limited  Provision of software 10 Queen Street Place, London
and data EC4R 18E, England
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21.

SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS (Continued)

Name

Mergermarket USA Inc.

Mergermarket (India)
Private Limited

Mergermarket
(Overseas) Limited

Mergermarket (US)
Limited

Mergermarket Bidco
Limited

Mergermarket Brasil
Consultoria Ltda

Mergermarket
Consulting (Australia)
Pty Limited

Mergermarket
Consulting (Singapore)
Pte Ltd

Mergermarket
Consulting Limited

Mergermarket FZ LLC
Mergermarket Limited
Mergermarket Midco 1
Limited

Mergermarket Midco 2
Limited

Mergermarket Topco
Limited

Perfect information
(Asia Pacific) Limited

Perfect Information
Limited

Nature of Business

Holding company

Provider of information
services

Provider of information
services

Provider of information
services

Holding company

Provider of information
services

Provider of information
services

Provider of information
services

Provider of information
services

Provider of information
services

Provider of informaticn
services

Holding company
Holding company
Holding company

Dormant

Provider of information
services
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Registered Office

2711 Centerville Road, Suite 400,
Wilmington, County of New Castle,
Delaware 19808, USA

13th Floor, India Bulls Finance
Centre, Tower 3, Senapti Bapat
Marg, Elphinstone West, Mumbai,
40013, India

C/C lon, 10 Queen St Place, 2nd
Flocr, London, EC4R 1BE, UK

1501 Broadway, 8th Floor, New
York, NY 10036, USA

C/O lon, 10 Queen St Place, 2nd
Floor, London, EC4R 1BE, UK

Avienda Paulista 453, Conjunto 71
Edificic Olivetti, Sac Paulo, SP
01311-000, Brazil

Level 2, 40 King Street, Sydney,
NSW 2000, Australia

30 Cecil Street, #19-08 Prudential
Tower, Singapore 049712

Suite 1602-06, 181 Queen's Road
Central, Hong Kong

14085, Floor 14, Aurora Tower,
Dubai, UAE

C/O lon, 10 Queen St Place, 2nd
Floor, London, EC4R 1BE, UK

C/O lon, 10 Queen St Place, 2nd
Floor, London, EC4R 1BE, UK

C/O lon, 10 Queen St Place, 2nd
Floor, London, EC4R 1BE, UK

C/O lon, 10 Queen St Place, 2nd
Floor, London, EC4R 1BE, UK

601 Prince's Building, Chater Road,
Central Hong Kong

C/O lon, 10 Queen St Place, 2nd
Floor, London, EC4R 1BE, UK
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21. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS (Continued)

Name Nature of Business Registered Office

Selerity Inc Praovision of software 49th Floor, 1345 Avenue of the
and data Americas, New York, NY 10105,

USA

youDevise (Hong Provider of information Suite 1602-06, 181 Queen's Road

Kong) Limited services Central, Hong Kong

youDevise Inc. Provider of infformation 160 Greentree Drive, Suite 101,
services Dover, Delaware, 19904, USA

youDevise Limited Provider of information  C/O lon, 10 Queen St Place, 2nd
services Floor, London, EC4R 1BE, UK

Acuris (Shanghai) Provider of infformation Room 032. 26th Fioor, No 1000

Information Service Co. services Lujiazui Ring Road, Free Trade

Limited Zone, China (Shanghai)

*Owns 75% of the Ordinary shares of Credit Rubric Limited
**These entities were struck off for dissolution as at 31 December 2022.

22. COMMITMENTS

There are charges over the assets ¢f the Group and over those of certain subsidiary
undertakings in favour of Wilmington Trust, National Association in its role as Collateral
Agent, and in favour of UBS AG, Stamford Branch.

Letters of credit on certain rental properties amounting to $0.9 million (2021: $0.9 miliion)
remain outstanding. The letters of credit are secured by $0.9 million {2021: $0.S million)
cash and included in "Other debtors and deposits” in note 14.

23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Key management personnel of the Group, being senior management of the Group, received
the following remuneration: :

2022 2021

$'000 $000

Emoluments 11,255 11,306
Pension contributions 15 168
11,270 11,474

Transactions with parent undertakings and fellow subsidiary undertakings

During the year, the Group transacted with related parties in the normal course of business.
Transactions with parent undertakings refer to transactions with entities that controls, either
directly or indirectly, the Company and its subsidiaries. Transactions with fellow subsidiary
undertakings refer to transactions with entities other than parent undertakings that are
controlled by the ultimate parent undertaking.
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23

24,

25,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Transactions with parent undertakings and fellow subsidiary undertakings (continued)
Sales and purchases to fellow subsidiary undertakings amounted to $8.9 million (2021: $8.3
million) and $21.5 million (2021: $24.7 million) respectively. Refer to notes 7 and 8 for
recognised finance income and expense.

Refer to nctes 14 and 19 for the outstanding balances as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.
$0.3 miilion (2021: $0.2 million) due from fellow subsidiary undertakings is included in trade
receivables, refer to note 14. The Group have received consideration of $0.4m (2021:
$0.2m) from fellow subsidiary undertakings for which service has not been fully provided
and is included within deferred revenue, refer to note 19.

Transactions with other related parties

During the year, a subsidiary of the Company extended a short-term loan of $1.5 million
(2021: $ni) to a related party which remained outstanding at 31 December 2022
Subsequent to the year end, the loan was repaid.

Transactions with subsidiary undertakings

Transactions with subsidiary undertakings refer to transactions with entities that the
Company controls, either directly or indirectly. The Company has availed the exemption
provided in paragraph 8(k) of FRS 101 to disclose transactions with subsidiaries.

PENSION COMMITMENTS

The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group in independently administered funds. The pension
cost charge representing contributions payable by the Group to the schemes in 2022
amounted to $5.5 million (2021: $5.8 miillion). Contributions payable to the fund at the year
end amounted to $0.7 million (2021: $0.8 million}.

PARENT UNDERTAKINGS, CONTROLLING PARTIES, DIRECTOR'S AND
SECRETARY'S INTERESTS

The Company's immediate parent undertaking is l-Logic Technologies UK Limited, a
company incorporated in the United Kingdom.

The Company’s ultimate parent undertaking and controiling party is Bessel Capital S.ar.l.,
a company incorporated in Luxembourg.

Neither the director, nor the company secretary, their spouses or minor children, held any
interests in the shares of the Company, its parent undertaking or any other group

undertaking, except as follows:

At the year end, Mr. A. Pignataro owned directly 100% (2021: 100%) of Bessel Capital S.a
rl
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26.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
The Group made an acquisition in 2021 which is detailed below.

Transaction expenses related to the acquisition were charged in the Ceonsolidated Income
Statement in the relevant year. In valuing the net assets on acquisition, the Group has
utilised market standard valuation techniques, specifically:

1. Relief-from-royalty method, which considers the discounted estimated royalty
payments that are expected to be avoided as a result of the patents or trademarks being
owned.

2. Multi-period excess earnings method, which considers the present value of net cash
flows expected to be generated by the customer relationships, by excluding any cash
flows related to contributory assets.

3. Bottom up valuation of deferred revenue, which considers the value of deferred revenue
to be the cost to fulfil the obligation plus @ market participants profit margin.

For the acquisition in 2021, the identifiable net assets were included in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position at their acquisition date fair value.

Backstop Solution Group LLC

On 28 December 2021, the Group acquired 100% of Backstop Solution Group LLC and its
subsidiaries ("“Backstop”), a provider of software solutions aimed at maximising efficiency
and productivity for institutional investors for total consideration of $274.1 million. The
consideration includes a deferred payment as disclosed below and in note 16. The deferred
amount has been initially recognised based on the present value, utilising an appropriate
medelling technique of the expected future payment using a discount rate (note 10) over 3
years. The goodwill recognised on acquisition represent the new customers, synergies and
cost-savings that will be brought-in to the Group which are not recognised as a separate
intangible asset.

Recognised amounts of identifiable assels and liabilities acquired:
Fair value of net
assets acquired

$'000
Cash 1,271
Cther current assets 6,553
Property, plant and equipment 2,609
fntangible assets 135,194
Trade and other payables (27,172)
Other liabilities (63,582)
Interest bearing loans (30,500)
Total identifiable assets acquired 24,373
Goodwill 249 744
Total consideration paid 274 117
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26. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

Satisfied by:
Cash
Deferred payment

Total consideration

Net cash outflow on acquisition
Cash paid
Cash balance at acquisition

Transaction expenses related to the acquisition amounting to $1.3 million were charged in
the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income in 2021.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2021, management estimated that Backstop
revenue would have been $41.4 million and loss before tax for the year would have been
$0.3 million. In determining these amounts management has assumed that the fair value
adjustments that arose on the date of the acquisition would have been the same if the
acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2021. No revenues or profit of the Backstop group
have been recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year

to 31 December 2021.

27. EVENTS SINCE THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATE

In January, March and April 2023 the Company declared and paid dividends of $19.5 million,

$76.9 million and $6.9 million respectively.
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28. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDIT EXEMPTIONS
The |-Logic Technologies Bidco Limited's subsidiary companies listed below are exempt

from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 relating to the audit of individual financial
statements by virtue of section 479A:

Name Company Registration

Number
Acuris Bidco Limited 11953221
Acuris Risk Intelligence Holdings Limited 08926950
Acuris Risk Intelligence Limited 05048084
ARI Enhanced Limited 08928795
Creditflux Limited 04252806
Credit Rubric Limited 10609715
Hoxton Holdings Limited 05052993
ldentity Theft Prevention Limited 09088791
Inframation Limited 04581107
Mergermarket Bidco Limited 08743375
Mergermarket Limited 03879547
Mergermarket Midco 1 Limited 08743363
Mergermarket Midco 2 Limited 08743372
Mergermarket (Overseas) Limited 08694431
Mergermarket Topco Limited 08816656
Perfect Information Limited 02758652
youDevise Limited 03331176
Dealogic Americas Limited 07877021
Dealogic EMEA Limited 07398395
Dealogic APAC Limited 04086422
Computasoft Consulting Limited 03091447
Computasoft e-Commenrce Limited 03524642

29. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The director approved and authorised for issue the financial statements in respect of the
financial year ended 31 December 2022 on 22 April 2023.
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